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THE COMMODITY EXCHANGE ACT, AS AMENDE

. S L
The Commodity Futures Trading Commission (“Commission”) has received information

from 1ts staff that tends to show, and the Commission's Division of Enforcement (“Division”)

alleges and is prepared to prove, that
Commodity Investment Group, Inc. (“CIG”) is a Florida corporation with its

L
prmcipal place of business at 3511 W. Commercial Blvd, Ste. 400, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33309

o 2. Since February 2001 CIG has been registered with the Commission as an
Introducing Broker (“TB”) pursuant to Seetion 4d and in accordaneC with Sectlon 4f of the
Commod;ty Exchange Act, as amended (“Act”), 7 U.S.C. §§ 6d and 6f (2004) '

3. On June 21, 2005, the Corﬁmission filed a federal civi.l.injunctive action against
CIG and others Coinmoa’ily Futures Trading Commission v. Commodity Investment Group,
Inc et al., Case No. 05-CV-5741 (HB) (S.D.N.Y. filed June 21, 2005).

4. The Complamt alleged that, among other things, from at least February 2001
through at least June 2005, CIG fraudulently solicited prospectlve customers to open accounts to

trade options on futures contracts by knowingly misrepresenting and failing to disclose material



facts concerning, among other things: (i) the likelihood that .a customer would realize large
pfoﬁts frqm trading commbdify options; (ﬁ) the risk involved in trading commodity‘op.tions; énd
- (ii1) CIG’s poor tfading record in light of fhe prloﬁt representations made in violation of Section
- 4¢(b) of the Act, 7US.C. § 6c(b) and Commission Regulatlon (“Regulatlon”) 33. 10(a) and (c),
| 17 C.F.R. § 33.10(a) and (c) (2004) | V
5. On February 27, 2007,7 the United States District Court for the Southefn District
6f New York entered a Consvent Order of Permaﬁent Inj unctipﬁ and Equitable Relief against CIG
| and ofhers (“Consent Ordér”) m the federal civil injunctive action. ..
6.- B The Conseﬁt Order contained stipulate_c.iifacts fhat, from February 2001 aﬁd
contihuing through at least Septemb_er 2005, CIG, through its Associated Persor_ié (“APs”),
solicitéd members of the general public to open accounts to trade commodity options. In
telephone sales calis, CI1G APS made umform and COﬁsistent misrepresentations regarding the
risks and rewards of trading commodity thions. In partic_iﬂar, CIG APs engaged in frandulent |
sales solicitations by, among other things: (a) miérepresenting the likelihood §f proﬁting from
trading commodity dptions§ (b) minimizing thé risk of loss; and (c) in Iighf of the profit
representations made, failing to disclose that over 90% of CIG’s customers lost money trading |
-commodity options.
7. The Consent Ordef contained stipulated conclusions of law that CIG; through its
APs, in connec_:tion with an offer to enter into, the entry intd, the confirmation of the execution
of, or the maintenance of commodity optioﬁs transactions, defrauded, deceived, or attempted to
defraud or deceive, other persons by making false; deceptive, or misléad_ing representations of '
material facts and ,By failing to disclose material facts necessary fo make other facts disclosed not
misleading to customers, all in violation of Section 4c(b) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § Sc(b), and
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' Regulati'on‘33.10(a)‘and (©), 17 C.-F.R. § 33.10(a) and (). CIG stipulated that its
misrepresentatibns and omissions were material and that it acted with sc‘ientc.e_r.‘ CIG agreed to.
the entry of the Consent Ordef that made these sﬁpulated fé.ct_s and concluéions of law.
' 8 As aresult of these actiohs, the Consent Order:s
a. - Permanently enj dins ‘CIG from violating Section 4'c(b) of the Act and
Regulatio_n 33.10(a) rand (c), and ’speciﬁclally from engaging in ahy'conimodity
: 'sale-s solicitations to custome_rs'-that: i) misrepresent the pfoﬁt potential in
commodities trading; ii) omit ihé.t the market factors into the price of commodities
- seasonal trends and well-known mérket events; 1i1) omit the actual track fecord of
the broker or ﬁrm; iv)- omit or d_ownpkiy the risk involved in commodity trading;
and v) omit any material fact necessary to make other facts disclosed not
misleading; |
b. Permanently enjoins CIG from directly or indirectly engaging in any
| cémmoditi_es trading that is subj ect to the rules of a registered entity, as that term
-is defined by Secﬁon 1a(29) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 1a(29), in any account: ® held
~ in the name of CIG; or (ii) in which CIG has a direct or indifect financial interest; |
or (iii) held iﬁ the name of any other person;
c. 'Permanently enjoins CIG from applying for registration or seeking
exemption from fegistration with the Commission in any capécity or engaging in
any activity requiring registration or exemption from registration, except'as
providéd for in Regulation 4:1..14(a)(9), 17 CFR. § 4.14(a)(9); and
d. Ordérs CIG to pay $11,819,785 in restitution to defrauded qustomers and
$7 million in civil monetary penalties.
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9. Piirsuaint to Section 8a(2)(C) of the Act, 7 USC § 12a(2)(C), the Commission
may revoke the registration of any person “if such pérs.on is perrrianently ... enj oined by order ...
of any court of competent jurisdiction, in‘cluding an order entered pursuant to an agreement _of |
settlement to"which the Commission ... 1s a party, from ... engaging in or.continuing any activity
where such activify involves .. .'fraud.” Furthermore, undér Seciion 8a(2)(E) of the Act, the
Commission inay revoke the registration of any person “if such person, within ten years . has
beeil found ... by agreement of settlement to which the Commission ... is av party, (i) to have
violaied any provision of this Act... where such violation involves ... fi'aud s

10.  The facts éet forth in paragrophs 1 through 9, above, constitute a vélid basis for -
the Commission. to revoke CiG_’s IB registration..
| | I

11. Pursuailt to Regulation 3.60(a), -17 C.F.R. § 3.60(a), CIG 1s hereby notified t_hat a
public proceeding shall be conducted in accordance with the.pfovisions ‘of Regulation 3.60, 17
C.FR. § 3.60, on the following questions:

a. Whether CIG is subject to statutory disqualification from régistr'ation
under Section 8a(2)(C) and (E) of the Act, as set forth in Section I, eibove; and

b. 1If the answer to question “a” in pairagraph 11 above is éfﬁrmative, whether
the registration of CIG as an IB should be réVoked.

12.  Such prooeéding shall be held before an Administrative Law Judge, in accordance
with Regulaiion 3.60,17 C.F.R. § 3.60, and all post-hearing procedures shall be conducted
pursuant to Regulation 3.60()-G), 17 C.E.R. § 3.60()-(). |

13.  In accordance with the provisions of Regulation 3.60(a)(3), 17 C.F.R. § |
3.60(a)(3), CIG is entitled to file a response chalienging the evidentiary basis of the statutory
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disqliéliﬁcation of _to. show cause why, hofvsfithstanding the accuf_acy of the allegatipns, its‘
N registfatidn should not be suspended, revpkéd, or restricted. Such response must be ﬁled with |
the Hearing Clerk, Office of Hearings and App_ealé, Commodity Futures Trading Commission,
‘Thre.e Lafé.yetté Centre, 1155 21% Street, N.W., Washington, DC 20581, and a cop-y served
upon Manal Sultan, Division of Enforcement, at 140 Broadway, 19® Fl., New York, NY 10005,'
within thirty (30) days after the date of service of this Notice upoﬁ CIG in accordance With the
- ‘prov151ons of Regulatlon 3.60(b), 17 C FR. § 3.60(b). If CIG fails to file a tunely response to
thlS Notlce the allegatmns set forth herein shall be deemed to be true and the presiding ofﬁcer
may iésue an Order of Default in accordance with the pfovisions of Regulation 3.60(g), 17
: C.F.R. § 3.60(g).
IIL. |

.’_l“he Hearing Clerk_sha»l}l_ serve this Notice of Intent to Revoke Registratioﬁ Pursuant to
Section 8a(2)(C) and (E) of the Commodity Exchange Act, as Amended by registered or certified
mail pursuant to Regulation 3.50, 17 C.F.R. § 3.50. | |

By the Commission.

YN

Eileen Donovan
Acting Secretary to the Comm1ssmn
Commodity Futures Trading Commission

Dated: __July 26, 2007




